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In Re Leo M, Frank, Fulton Supexriox Court, Sentenced to be executed,

June 22nd, 1915,

Saturday, April 26th, 1913, was lemorial Day in Gegforgia and a gen-
erzl holidey, At that time Mary Phagan, a whita gixl, of asbout 14 years of
age was in the employ of the Ia.tiﬁnal-Pénnil Compary iucatad. nea._r tne oorner
of Foreyth ifkunter Sts, in tne City of Atlanta, She came %o the Peroil
Factory & little after noon to g‘bta.in the mnnieg}-dua hey for her work on
the preceding Monday, &nd Leo I Frmﬂa:, the-_de;fandant, paid ner $1,20, the
amount due her and this was the last time ghe was ﬁaeﬁ alive, > |

Frank was tried':for the offense and found guilty the succeeding Au.gust:_'
Application is now made to me for clemency, '

This case has J‘Ibeen the suject of axtanuiva-ummnan‘-:s through the news-
papers of the United States and has ocuasioned'the trangmiegion of over ;
100,000 letters from various States Tequesting clemency, XXE Many communi-
cations have been raaei*;'aﬁ from oitizens of this State advocating or oppos—
ing interference with the gentence of the court, ' : z

I desire to say in this connection that the people of the State of
Georgia desire the esicem and good will of the people of every State in'
the ‘ﬂ'niun., Every oitizen wishes the approbatlion of his fellows and a
state or Nation is not excepted, In the prémn'ola to the Declara.tian'nf
Independence, Thomag Jefferson wrote that "When in the course of human eventa:
it becomes néueaaary for one people to dissolve the political bands which 1
neve connected them with another, and to essume among the powers of tne
earth the separate and equal station to which the Laws of Nature and of
Hature!s God entitles themj 45 a decent respect to the opinions of man-

¥ind requires that they should declare the causes which lmpel them to
i
the eeparation,

Miany newspapers and multitudes of pecble have &av tacked the State

of Georgia, because of the convioction of Leo M, Trank and have declared the

conviction to have been through the domination of a mob and with no evidence

to support the verdiot, This opinion has been formed to & great extent by

those wno have not read tne evidence and who are unacquainted with the

Judisial procedure in our State.

I have been unable to evenﬁa large Fomzex proportion of tThe letiers

sent me, because of their number and Decause 1 could not through them g&in
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any assistance in ddtermining my cliui;.:;.',

The murder committed was a most neinous one, A young girl was
strangled to death by a cord tied around her throat and the offendex
deserves the punishment of death, ' mhe only gquestion is as to the ident=-
ity of the eriminal, -

The responeibility is upon the people of Gecrgia Lo protect the
1ives of her citizens and to maintain the dignity of her laws, and if the
choice Xumgde must be made between the approbation of citizens of other
qtates and the enforcement of our laws against offenders whether powerful

or wealk, we must choose tne latter alternative,

MOES,

It is cherged that the court md jury were terrorized by a Mob
and the jury were coerced into their verdioct.

I expeot to present the facts in this case with absoluts fair-
ness and to state conditions with ragérd only to the trubh, =

When Frank was indicted and the air was £illed with rTumors as to
the murder and mutilation of the dead girl, there was intense feeling
and to such extent that my predecessor, Governor Brown, ata@& in argu-
ment before me that he had the Military ready to proteot the Jums in :
z=gE ihe event any attack was made, No such attack was made and from
t+he evidence that he obtained none was contemplated. '

Some weeks after this,defendant was put on trial, Georgla proo-
ably has the broadest provisions i‘dr change of wenus in criminal uasaar
that exist in any sfa.te. our law permits the Judge to ch&néa the venue
on his own motion, in the event ne thinks a fair trial cannot be given
in any county, The defdndant can move for & ochmge of venue on the same
ground, and if it be refused, the refusal of the Judge is subject to an
immediate eppeal to the Buprema Court, and in fa0T, the e:nti:re ganius

o ido
our law &g—m—anam‘tﬂf fair trial gbsolubely free from external influ-~

ence,

Frark went to tradl without asking a change of venue and submitted
This ExEr gRMEE case to a Jury that was scceptable to him, IHe was by

represented by u_wnaaljﬂ of cnnauicunus ability and experience,
ar+ay evidenoe had been introduced

During the progref§ of the cass,

laying the crime with many orrensive detailp upes TyEalk, The feeking
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egainst him became Imxktenss il_iténse, He was the EFEXWEX gensral super=—
infend,an-b of the Factory and Kary Phagan was a poor working girli, He ';:raa
a Q5Fnell Sraduate aua s08 aependent i;ﬁx 1'1&:.- 111?1111%:1 upon her labor,
According to a witness, whose testimony will Bubsaqm*'n t1y be related more
completely, when this g:L‘nl came to get her small pay, eince she only worked
one day in the week, beeause of lack of material, this general superintend-
ent solicited her to yield to his importunities and on her refusal slew her. ;

The relation of these fa.cta Emarwhera and in any community wnuld
exgite unbounded. condemnation,

If the audience in the couxrt room manifested their deep resentment
toward Frank, it was 15.:Eg$l:.r by this evidence of feeling beyond the power
of é. court to correct, T+ would be difficult anywhere for an ag;pellé,te
aﬁurt, or even & trial court, to gra.nt'a. new trizl in a case ‘which ocoupied
thirty days, becauss the a.uﬂ._ence in the court room upﬂn a few occasions
indicated their s:,rmpathiaa. However, the deep feeling agalast Fra.nk
which developed in the progress of the evidence was in the atmosphere and
raga:'dl&ﬂn-ﬂf the commission of those acts of whioh the cours would take
cognizance, the feeling of the public was atr 0N, ;

Since Gov, Erown has related gecret histrory in his pu‘uliu argumen t
before ma, T may state that Friday night ‘nefure the vard,ht. was e:mscted
Saturday, I had the Sheriff to call at the Mansion and J.nqu;l.rad whether
he ﬂn-icipated trouble, This was after many peopla had told me of pos-
gible danger and an editor of a laa.diﬂg newspaper indicated nis anticipé.tion

£ trouble, The ‘Sheriff stated ne thought nis d.aputiaa gould ayert m:u.
diffinuli::,r. Judge Roan talayhunad. me that he had arranged for the defend-
and to be &bsent when the verdict was rendered, Like Gov, Erown, I 3
entered into commmnication witnh the Colonel of the Fifth Regiment, who
stated ne would be ready if there wexre necessity. {: o X

T wae leaving con Sa.txmd.ew, +the day the wre::d.mt wza/m:pected, for
Colorado Bprings to attend the Sovsrnors Gungresa of the Gnvernnra. and
did not wish to be absent if my preaance were necessary, L bhave now the
original .order prepared by me at the time, in the aw:nt there -mare-a. nec=

essity fc& it, I became convinced there would e slight chance for any
use of force and therefore filled my engagement 1n Colorado,

Judge Roan, in the exercise of precaution, requested that both
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counsel and defendant pe absent when the verdict was rendered, in order %o

avoid afﬁ’pmssible demonptration in the event of =mecquittal,

The jury found the defendant guilty and with the expeption of de-
monsiration outside the court room, there wae no disordex, : L

Hence, it will be seen that notning was done which gcourts of any
State could correct through legal mashiﬂary. A court must have gomething
more than an atmosphere with which to deal, and especially when that at-
mosphere has been created through the prnneasen of evidence in disnlosing
a horrivle crime,

Our Supreme Court, after carafully gonsidering the evidence &8s o
demonstrations made By gpectators, declared them without nmrit, an;::;is

regerd the orﬂariy processes of our tribunals are not aﬁhjeu£ to criticism,

RACIAL PREJUDICE,

Tne charge agsinst the state of Georgla of racial prejudice is un-
fair, A nunapicunuiﬁgawiﬂh family in Gaorgia is deécaﬁﬁed ffnm one_cf tﬁa
nriginal solonizal families of the State, Jews ‘phave been prasidents of our
Boards of Education, priﬂciyala of our achuola, Mayors of our cities,

and conspicuous in all our commercial BﬂuETPTiBEE.

THE FACTS IN THE CASE,

Many newspapers and nonwresidents have dmxiiaed declared that Frank
was convicted without any avid;nﬂe to sustain ﬁhe-+srdict, In la:éa meas-
ure, thaés giviﬁg expression to this utterfpce nave noﬁ read thé inxﬁri :
aviﬁenna ana are uot aaquﬁintad witn tne faots, Tne same'may pe gald
TeRgaralig Wy of toope wnou are demanding his exsuuhian; ' =

in my Jjudgment, no ghe has &'right +o an opinion who ig not ao-
quainted with the evidence in the case, and 1t must ve conceded ipalthe Jury
whé aaw the witnessesg end beheld thelr demecncr upor the stend are in.thﬁ
best pusitian_ns a general rule to reach the truth, > =

1 cannot, within the sﬁﬂrt tiwe given me 1o decide the casey enter
into the details outlined in thousands of pages of testimonye I will =
present tne more salient Teatures, End nave a rignt to agk that all per*
the matuar, Bhall read :

cons who are interested in tpe determination of

cﬂﬂyuﬂﬁ@mﬂmﬂﬂyﬁeﬁﬂm
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THE STATE'S CASE,
The State proved that Leo i, Frank, the General Superintendent of
the Fectory, was in kis uff:ice a little after 12 otclock on the 26th dayr
of April, 1913, and he admitted having paid lary Phagan, $1,20, being the
wagep dué her for one day's work, She asked Frank whétﬂer the metal had
come, in order to know when she could return for work, Frank admits this
and so far as is known, he was the last one who eaw her alive, " At three
otclock the next morning (Sunday), Wewt Lee, the night watchman, found in
. . T AT Cnt,
tne basement the body of lary Phagen strangled to death by a cord Vv
kept generally in the Metal Room, which ia on. Frank!'s floox, She had &
cloth tied arcund her head which was torn from her unde_ruk."r_rt. Her drawers
were either'rip;pad or out and same blood and urine were upon them, “Hex
eye was very 'Ela.ck, indicating & 'i:rlui';, and. there wee & out 2% inches in
length sbout four inches sbove the ear and tc the left ‘é.heréofI which ex-
tended through the scalp to the s]:uli. The County Physiclan who axﬂmined
e &

ker on Sunday morning ﬁeuf’madﬂm viclence toc the parts and the blood was

characteristdo of menstrual flow, There yere no éxtérnal signs off ::a_f:e.

The ‘Eoﬂy was not mutilated, the wounds thereon being on the head and soratch-

es on the elbow, and a wuuind aoout two inches below the knee,
The State showed that Mary Phagan hed eaten her dinner of bread
and cabbege at 11,30 olclock and hu.d-ce.ught the caxr to go to the Pencil

Factory whioh would enable hsr +o arrive at the Factory within the neigh-

sorhood of about thipty minutes, The element of exact time will e

discuseed later,

Dr, Herris, the Secretery of the State Board of Health, and an ex-
pert in thie 1ina: examined the contenis of liary Phagan'e stomach ten days
£x after her burial and found from tne state of the digesticn of the oab-

bage end bread, that she must heve been rilled within ebout thirty min-

utes after she hed eaten the meel, .
Wewt Lee, the negro night watchman, testified that Frank had"told

me to be back at the Factory at 4 olclock Saturdgs afterncnn‘i_ end when
hevcame up stairs to report, Frank rubbing his hends" met Newt Lee and

"epkibrianctin told kig to " _- out and heve & good time until 6 o'clook™,

J v oy -
although Lee said he would prefer to lie down and sleep. Woen Lee Ie-

turned,; prank changef the slip in the Time Eluckjrﬂnifeating nervousne ss
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and teking e long time than usual,

When Frark walked out of the front deor of the Fectoxy, he met &
men nemed Gantt, whom he had discharged a ghort time before. ‘Frank locked
frightened, his explanﬁtion veing thet he anticipated harm, Gantt de~-
clared he wighed to ;ni go up atairﬁ and get two pairs of ahoes which
permisgion Frank finally grauntied, stating that he thought they had been
pwapt out, '

About an hour after this occurrence, Frank called up Lee over the
telephone, a thing he had never done befaré, and asked him if everything
was all right at the Factory. TLee found the double inner doors locked, w
whinﬁ%iad never found that way before, suhuequanily, when Lee was ar-
regted and Frank was raqueatéd by the Detectlves o gﬁ in and talk tﬁ iim
in order to find what he knew, Lee says thatl Frﬂnkrdr?pﬁedlhis nead and
stated Mif you keep that up, we will both go to hell®, |

On Sunday morning at sbout 3 olclock, ¢ ter Newt Lee, the night
watchman, bad telephoned the Police Station of the discovery of tke dead
nﬁ&y an&-ahe uffica;s had come +5 the Factory, they endeavored to reach
Frank by telephone, dut could not get a.respnnsa, They éelaphoned et
790 Sunday morning and told Frank that thay wanted him to come down to
the Fantury and when they ceme Tor him, he was very nezgvous and urembled*
The body at thet time hed been taken to the Undertekers, and according %o
+he evidence of the offiocers who took Frank by the ﬂn&éréakera astﬁblisir
ment to identify the girl ne (Frank) showed & iia;nul;nntlnn to lock &b
the body end did not go intu the roan where it 1&&, but turned away at
the door, >

FPrank hed made an engagement on Friday to go to the Base Ball
Geme on Seturday afternoon with his prother—-in-law, but broke the en-
gagemsru, as he said in his stetement, because of tre financial state-
ment he had %o mzke up, while vpefore the Coronexr's Jury. he said he :

broke the engagement because of tnreamening wenther.

The contention of the Statey as will hafeaftar be disclosed, was
that Frenk remained at the Factarynsaturday afternocon to diﬂpnse ué the
vody of Mary Phagan, and that that was tie réaacn he gave Newt Lee his

unusual leave of @&bsence,
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The cook'!s husband teau_fied that on Sa+urdw, the dey of the mur—

der, he vigited his wife at the home uf ir, Selig, d.efendant‘s fatharin—lnw.

- =

where Frepk and his wife were living, end that Frank came in to dinner and
ate notning, The negro cock of the Selig's was placed upon the stend and
denied tﬁaﬁ her nusband was in the kitcken at all on that day, For purw
poses of impeachment,therefore, the State introduced an affidavit from
this oook teken by the Da#eati{r&a, end as she claimed under dure;a, which
tended to substentizte the story of her husband and which affidsyit de-
olared that on Sunday morning after the murder, she heard ii.rfs. Frank té]_l
her mother that Mr, Frank was drinking the night before end mede her sleep
on & rug and called for a pistol to shcot himself, because he (Frank) had
murdered a girl, This affidavit was xmxsX relevant for purposes of ime
pesokment although, of course, it had no legal probated value as to the
facts u::n'!:,aine& therein, On the utémd.,the cook dauiged that she was
coerced by ner nusband and Detectives und&*' threat of ﬂalng 100]:3:1 Lm
unless she gave it, and it was made at the Stati on dause, The State
proved it was given in the presence of = lmvyar and said that her denial
of the truth of the affidavit was because her wages had been increased
by the parent of lirs, Frank, o details are givén as to where the con-
vereation occurred between Mrs, Frank and her Mu%her,'nnr ia there any i
explantion as tc how she happened to hear the canvarﬂatit-n. It will
e aa.a:i.ljr seen that the effect of the affidavit upon the Jury might ‘e great,
r--It is hard to conceive thet any men ! s power of fa.‘hfina.t-ién of minuté d
details could remch that which Gc-n.'lé}f showed, unless it be the {'rru‘ch.
. The evidence introduced tended to show thet on Sunday morning Frank
tock out of the Time Clock the slip which he had admitted at that ‘time was
punched for &a.cll-z half hour, and subsegquently Frank claimed that scme punches
had been missed, The suggestion was that he hal either mn.z:ipﬁlatad the slip
to place the burden on Leﬂ, or was 8o axaited as to Eﬁmmmble to reed ire ﬂ:t
slip correctly, \1{5_‘

| The Stazte introduced & witness, Monteen Stover, to prove that at the
time ¥Rk when llary Pha.gr.m and Frank were in the ;;.a-"ai Houlk, soe w;'sa ii;
Fra.ns*s Office ami he 1-.33 acsenu, a.ltnwgh he had de-:le.z-ad Te hed not left his
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orfice, TEELE The State sk;.ox:.raa tnat the nsir of Mary Phagan had been
weshed mknxpinexiaxxmospx by the Endertaker_wi*ﬁh pine tar f:-.;:aap. whioch
would uhéne;a its color and thereby interfere with tre abhlity of the
Doctor to ':.eli the similarity between the :-mir- onn the lathe and lary
Phagan's hair, :

. The State further showed a cord of the character whioh strangled
lary Phagan was found in quantities on the Metal Room Tloox,, and was
found iﬁ 1aaﬂ'qua.ntttiés and t?ﬂnlcﬁt wp in thé"ba.aement,”  As to this
Detective Ete.rnes u,-Bﬂl.-if'tEd ¥I saw & cord like that in the bassment, _
but it was cut up in pieuea. I saw & good many cords like that all

over the Factoxy",

Hnllm‘e‘mf teptified: "These cords are all over the bulilding and in
the basement®, ' :

Darley testified:to the same effeot,

Howeversthie contradicts the testimony that was presented to the

Jury for sulutie::n.
ot St
-.-.-’s—p-romad +o the Jury that witnesses for the defendant, undexr the
suggestion o gel, would change their testimony so that it n:ight not
A~ ¥

operate against the defendant,

I have not enumerated sll the suspicious circumstances urged by
the State, but have mentioned what have aﬁ:eé:caﬂ to me the most prominent
ones, Vhere I have not mentioned the more prominent ones, an inspection
of record Tells to maintain the cont&rﬁ&n. :

It is contended thet & lawyer was engaged for Frank at the Station
House before he was esrvested, This is replied to by the defense that &
a friend had engaged counsel without Frank!s knowledge, =nd the 1mwér

adviged Frank toc make full :e.l‘.:a.tement to the Datactivaﬁ:

JIi CONLEY,
mhe most startling and spectacular evidence in the case was that EF&

given by a negro,; Jim Conley, & man 27 yaara-nf age, and one who frequently

had been in t chalngang, Gonley had worked ab +he Faciory for about

two years and was thoroughly E.cqua:r.nte&. with it. He nad worked in the

basement about two months and had run the m.w&t.a., anout a :-,' egr and a half,

=
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On ligy lst he was an'*eéted by the Detectives,

Near the body in the basement had been found two notes, one written
on brown paper and the other on a leaf of a scratcl pad, That written on
white paper in a negro's hand writing showed thé following:

“He said he would love me, lay down play like the night witch, did
it, but that long, tall black negro did boy hisself', - e

On the brown paper, which was the carbon sheet of an order blank

whlch hereafier becomes importand,
headed "i?lanfa, Ga, _ . _ 190", ,was written in.a nagru’s hand writing the
failawing; ' 3

Wifam that negro fire down here did this i went to mske water and he
pusher push me down a hole a long tall negru'hiack did (head) if. i write
while play with me", | 1 ; -

The Deftectives learned apout the middle of ey that Conley could
write, although at firet he denied it,  He made fmumx one statement and
three affiflavits which ere more fully referred to in statling the ﬁefenﬁ-
entls cuah.. The affideviis were &ntroduced by ths defendant under nﬂtice
to produce, - ' |

By these affidavits there was admitted the substance of the evidence
that he delivered on thé stand, whiah in"brief was as follows: :

Conley cloimed that he was asked by Frank to come to the Factory on
Saturdey and wam&ﬁ for him, as ha.ﬁ:ﬂ previously had done,; which ﬁa explained
meant that Frank expected tc meet some woman and waen Frank stamped his foou
ﬂnﬁlay was toc lock the door leading into tﬁa ﬁactory end when he whistled,
he was to open it, - . il

Conley ocoupied & dark place to the side of the Elevator behind some

p

boxes, where he would be iﬁviaible.
 Conley mentioned several benple, including male and female emplcyees,
who went up the steps to the éecunﬂ fléﬂr where Frank's'nffiaa %&s 1ocated;_
He said that Mary Phagan went upt the stairs and he heard in a few minutes
foot steps going back to the Metal Enum,'%hich is from 150 to 200 feet from
the office, He heérd a scream and than.ha dozed off, En a feﬁ minutes
Frank stamped and then Conley locked the door and then Frnhk whistled, at
whnich time Conley unlocked the door and went up the stays. Frank waé

ghi vering hrd tremvling =nd told Conley "I wanted to be wiﬁh the li*tle

girl and she refused me and I ﬂﬁruﬂﬂihﬂr end I guess I struck her too hard
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and she fell and hiv her head t'.,;,ﬂins" sometning, end I do not know how bad
ghe got hurt, VYOI ccourse, vou know 1 aint bu;lt like other men",

Conley described Frark as having been in pusitinn which Conley thought
indicated perversion, but the faots set out by Conley do not demand v
canalusiun; -

Conley says that he found Mary Phagan lying in the Metal Roam some
200 feet from the office, with a cloth tied sbout her neck and under the
nesd a8 though to catoh blood, although there was no blood ab the place,

Frank tcld Conley to get a piece of cloth and put the bedy in it and
Conley got a piece of striped ved tick and tled up the body in it and brought
it to a place & little waﬂ f1om the_dresaingTronm and druppai it and then
called on Frank for assistance in carrying it, Frank went to his office
and got a key and ‘unlooked the gwitch board in oxrder +o cperate the eleva-
tor, and he &nd Conley took the 'b;:;d;' in the elevator down to the 'baﬂament,
where Conley rolled the body off the cloth, Frenk returned to the first
floor by the ladder, while Conley went by the elevator and Frark on the
first floer got into the elevatox and went to the second floor on which
the office is ,ocated, They went back into Frank's pm;vate office and
Just at that ti me Frank sald "Iy Gui, here is Emma Clark and Corintihi
Hell®, and Frank then put Conley into the wardruhe. After they left &
Frenk let Conley out and asked Conley if ne could write, to which Conley
gﬂfe an affirmative repl¥, Frank then dictated the letteTs heretofore
réfafred to, Frark took out of his deak'a roll of Mxmwk green backs
and told him "Eere 18 $dﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂ“ but after & while reguested the money
back and gnt 1t

One witness tesfified she Hasugk saw some negro,whom she did not
recognize, sitting at the side of the elevator in the glnm.. On the extra-
ordinary motion for new trial, & womean, WiO wWas unimpeached, made Effl&&?‘t
that on the 31st of M=y, through newspaper report, she saw that Gnnlev
'31aimed he met Frank by agraament at the cornex of Furﬂyth & Melson Stss
on the 26th of April, 1913, and she became satisfied that she saw the two

in close ﬂanversatinn at that place on uhat dats. hetreen lﬂ,ﬂﬁ and 11,C0

olclock,

Frank put his character in issue and the State introduced ten wit-
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nesses attacking Frank'!s character, some of whom were Factory employees,

who testified that Frank's reputation for lasciviocusness was bad a::zd auﬁ e
told thet he had been seen meking advances to lary Phaga.n, "whom Frank had
professed to the Detectives; ‘either not to have kncwn, or to ha.fa been
slightly acquainted with, nther witnesses 'teut:r.fied that prank had im-
p:capsriy énne'intn the Dressing Room of the girls, Some witnesses wno :
answered on direct examination that Frankle reputation for lasciviousness
was bad, were not crossefl examined as %o details, and this was made the
subject of comment before thne Jury, | |

The above states very 'n:&iaﬂy the gist of the State's case,omitting
many inoidents which the State olaims would confirm Frank's guilt when taken

in their entirety,

DEFENSE,
The defendant introduced epproximetely one hundred witnesses as to his

good character, They ineluded eitizens of Atlanta, Gollaga-ma:tea at Cornell

and Profepsors of that College,

The defendant was born in Texas and his education was completed at

the Institution named, ;

The edmission of Conley that he wrote the notes found at the body of
the dead girl, tﬂsethar with the part he admitted he pleyed in the t:.ans&cté
ion, c.om‘nin d with his h:latury and his axpla.n&tmn as to both the WTJ.'!J-J.EE t
of the Notes and the removal of the body to the basement, make the entire
czse revolve about him, Ilid‘. Conley speak the truth? .

Before going into the varying ﬂ.nd conflicting effidavits mede by
Conley, it is a.dvisa.nla to refer to BD‘EE incidents which cannot ve recon-
oiled o Conley!s mkmtmmwwt story, Whorever a phwsical fect is stated by
Gonley, which is admitted, this can be accepted, bub under both the rules
of la.w'a.nd of comun'sﬂnaé, his statements c:a.nnét be received, excepting
where clearly corra‘bor&ta&; He admite not only his pa.rticip&-ﬁinn as an
auceaunﬁ-, but also glibl:,r cnr.feéaes his own infamy, S5 |

One fact in the case,and trat of most important force in xaviswing
arriving at the ;t,ruth, contradicts Conley's taatimuﬁ:r. L5 is- disagfasﬁhle

to refer to it, but delicacy must yield to necessity when humen life is at

shake,
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The myetery in the case is the question as to how lary Phagan's
body got into the basement, It was found iiérzeet away from the ele-
vator and the face gave evidence of being dragged through dirt and cinders,
She had d@irt in her eyes and mouth, Conley testified that he and Framk
took the Euﬁy down to the basement in the elevator on thé afterncon of April
26th,; 1913, and leaves for inference that Frank removed the pody 136 feet
toward the end of the building, where the body wes found at a spot near
the back door which led out townrds the street in the rear, ' Conley :
swears he did not return to the basement, but went back up in the elevator,
while Frark went back on the ladder, constituting +he only two methods of
ingress and egraas-to the baaﬁment, axcapting Ehruush the Ptack door, A
This was between one and two u'clu&k on the afternoon of Apiii zﬁﬁh.
Conley testified that on the morning of April 26th he went down
into the basement to relieve his bowels and utilized the elevator shalf
for the pui‘posa_. . - . - :
On the morning of April 27th at 3 o'clock, when the Detectives came

3+ down into the basement by way of the ladder, thaﬁ inspected the pﬁemiaaa,

including the shaft, and they found there human excrement in matmom netural
condition, 1 3 '
Eﬂbsequentxy. waen they used the elevatcr, which everybody, includ=-
ing Conley; who had run the elevator for 1} #Bﬂrér admits, only stops by 2
ﬁittins the ground in the haaémaﬁt, the elevator étfucﬁiths exﬂ:enénm and

,__ggghga it, thus demonstrating that the elevator had noi been used since
e e  —

cunley had been there, Solicitor Gemeral Dorsey, lr, Howard and mysels
visited the Pemcil Factory and went down this elevator and we found it hit
the bottom, I went egain with my Seoretary with the same result.

Frank is dalicaﬁe in physique, whio&.canley is strong and powerful,
Conley's place for watching, as described by h;msalf, wag in the gloom a
few feet fruw the hatchwar 1anding by way of 1aﬂdar tu ‘the pasement, ﬂlaa
he waqﬁg few feet of the alevatnr ghaft on the first £lo0T, ¢0nleyla action
in the elavﬂtar ghaft was in acuardnnca with his taﬂtlmony that hs made :

water twice agalust +he door or the alevamar sunaf't Ou tne mﬂrning of tna

zﬁt.n, 1ustead of doang B0 iu the gloon of nis corner ceniud the boxes where

s "

ha'kept watch.
lMary Phagan in goming down stalrs wes compellad to pass within a few

feet of Cunlay, who was invisiole to her and iu a few reet o the nntuhmaw

e —
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Frank could not have ocarried ﬁerﬁduwn the hatchwaey, Conley might have done
80 with diffioulty. If the Elevator Shaft was not used by Conley and
Frank in taking the body to the basement,; then the explanation of Gﬁnlay,
who admittedly wrote the notes found by %he body, cannot Ea accépted, =

. In addition there was found in the Eelevator Sh?ffat 3 O%clock
Sunday morning; the pamasul. which was unhurt; and a ball of cord which
had not been mnahad, '

Conley in his affidavits before the Detectives testified he wrapped
up the bodﬁ in a crocus sack at the pucgestion of Frﬁnk,_hﬁt‘an the tfial,
he testified he wrapped up the body in a pieve of Tedbiok 11a The shkot
of the Euliuitﬂr Genaraii The anly reason fur suah chﬂnge of taatimaﬁy,
unless it be the truth;-wns that & orocus sack unless apiit open would be
too small for the purpose, If he split open the crocus sack with a knife,
thig would suggest the use of a kn;fa in outting the dru&e*a of tqe gi11

E So the question EIlBEB, whether there was any bed-tick in the Pencil
Factory$ and no reason can be ‘offered why bed-tick snould be in a Pencil
Faatory; It has no function there, Had such unusual cloth been in the Fac-
tory, it eertainly must have been known, but hobody has ever found it,

: Gunla; pays that after the deed — cammittad which everybody ad-
mits could not have been befara 12.05; Frank audderﬂa sﬂid- "Hera nomes ;
Emma Clark and Gurinuhia.hall and he put Conley in a wardrdbq.

‘The uncon Iﬂdlﬂued evldenca of these Lve WitﬂEEBBE, and they axre
unimpeanhed, was they reached the Factory at 11,35 A, M, Bﬂd left it at
11,46 A, J,, end therefore this statemsnt of Conley can hardly be accepted,

: conley says that when they got the body to tﬁsb::E;mni the elevator
in the bvapement, Frank told him to leave the hat, slipper and piece of
ribbon right there but he “taken the fhinga and ﬁituhad them over in front
of the boiler" which was 07 feet wway, — ,

Conley eaye thaﬁ'yrémk tol& him wrken he waiched for him to lock the
door when he Frank stémped and t; open the dooxr éhan he whistled, In cother
words, Frark had mede the approsch to the girl and had killed her before hs
had signelled Conley to lock the door, |

- Conley says, "I was upstalrs between the tima I locked the ﬁon; and
the time I unlooked it, "I wnlocked the door before I wemt up stalrst,

This explanation is not clear, nor is it easy to comprehend the use of the
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signels which totally failed their purpose,

- I+ is curious during the course of the story that while Frank ex-
plained to Canlay about striking the girl when ghe refused him and Eonley
found the girl strangled with a cord, he did not ask Frank anything about
the use of the cord, and that Edbd&ﬂu was not mﬂntiunad.

The woulid on Mary Phagan was near the top of the head and reached
the skull, Wounds of that cheracter bleed freely, AL tha‘pléae Goﬁley
says he found blood, there wase no Ylood, Conley says there was 2 cloth

tied around the head as though to catch the plood, but none was found

there,

One Barreit seys that on Uonday morning he found six or Beven
strands of hair on the lathe with which he worked and which were not there
on Friday, The implication is thﬂt it was Mary Phagan's nair and that she
received & cut by having her hand struck at this piaée. It_ia admitted
+nat no blood was found there, The lathe is nhnut 5y feet h;gh and Mary
Phagan is deseribed as being chunky in uuzld : :nz hlaw'which.waulﬁ have
foroed her with sufficient violence againat the smooth handle of the lathe
to have prnduned the wound must heve been a pnwarful ane, gince the differ-
ence between her height and that of the lﬂth$ unuld not have accounted
for it, It was strange, therefores that there was & total absence of

blood and that Frank, who was delic&te, could nave hit a blow of such

viclence,

Some of the witnesses for the State testified the hair was like that
of liary Phagan, elthough Dr, Herris compared Hary Phagan's pair with that on

the lathe un&er a mieroscope and was under the imprasslon it was not Mexy

-

Phegan's hair, This will be the supjeot of further comnent,
t S lieit and others sald they thought they saw blood near the dressing
oom, at which place Canlay.aaid he draggzed the body,
Chief of Police Eaayerﬁ-said 1a 4id not know whether-1t was blood,

I Daiaati?esstarnas gaid, "I do not know that the splotohes I saw was
x »

blood™,

Detective Black says,ir, Starnes, who Was shere with me, did not

call my attention to any blood Bplﬁtchesﬁ.

Dectective Scott sayss e went to the Metal Roam where 1 was

shown somes spobs supposed to be blood spoish,
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A par: of what they thaﬁgflt to be bhood was chipped up in four

~ or five chips and Di-. Claude- Smith tasﬂfaéd. that on _t;_rl_ﬂ_ of t.hé chips
he faund,u:ﬁ&.er a mioroscope, from three to five ‘blood coxpuscles, &
half drop would have caused it, ‘ g

srank says that the part of the splotoh that was left aftox the

ith an electric flagh lamp,

chips wexe take;n up was a:caminaﬁ-bar him w
and it was now 'nlaud.,- |

Barrett, who worked on vhe Metal floor, and who sevexal witnesses
declare claima;!. a reward because he diauwara»:i the hair and 'Eiunéi :pm_
axixsald the splotch was not ihere on Friday, and some witnaséea Bus=-
tained him, : y '

There was testimony that thers wsere frequent injuries at the
Factory and blémd was not infrequent in the neigh"narhood of-ti:a ledies?
dressing ruum_.ﬂm g s Mmm Sl =

Dr, Smith, the City Pacteriologist said +nat the presence of blocd
corpuscles ca{zld ba told for mntha- af{er the bla;:d had dried, All of
this bore upon the questlon as to whebther the muxder J'wdx place in the
Metal Room, which is on the same floor of Frankls Office, Exeepting
noar the lietal Room 2% the plase mentionsd where the éplotuheaqvm'ged
according ta'ﬁhiaf Peaver!s testimony, from the gsize of a qua.rtai: to the
Biaé nf‘ a palm ieai‘ fﬁn, thare wWas no-blaud. wha.ta{'ér_.' If is to be Te-
marked that a white substance cﬂled haskoline usad about thé Factory Was

found spread over the splotches,
COFNLEY'S ARTIDAVITS,

The defense procured under notice one statement and t+hree affidav-
its taken by the I}etéctiﬂrea from Conley and introduced them in a*ﬁridénce:

The first st&anﬁ, dated May 18, 1913; gives a minute detail of his
actions on the 26th daar-uf April and ﬁpaciﬁias the saloons he visited and
the whigkey and Deer he bought, and minutely itemized the denomination
of the money he had and waeh hé gpent for 'neaz_', Wl_liﬂkﬁ:-' and pa.n'sausa.ge.
This comprehends the whole of Affidavit #l. o~ e

on lay 24, 1918, he made for the néteu’aiven an affidavit in which

he says that on Friday tefore the Saturday on which ths murder wes commite
»

ted, wrank asked nim if ne could write, This would appear strange, pecaust

-
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Trank well lknew he could write and had so known for months, but according to
Conleyls affidavit Frark dictated ‘aa"nim practically the contents of one
of the notas found by the body of lfary Phagan, Frark,then, according o
Conleyls statement, took a brown seratch pad and wrote on that himself,
and then gave nimls box of oigarettes in which was some money and Frank said
to him that he had somsa wa.ai‘.;har relatives in Brooklyn, and “why should T
Dot L = Ty -

This would have made Frark guilty of the contemplated murder on Friday
which was conswmated Saturday and which was so un¥easonable, it could not
‘ba'ﬂcﬂap{:aci!. | ' S aa

On May 28th, 1913, Conley made for the Deteciives another affidavit, X
which he denominates a.-s“ éecond s.md'last statarcentfi In t;ha';:t he states that
on Saturfiey morning after leaving home ne bought iwo beers for himselsf and
then went to a saloon and vmﬁ 90 cts, with dice, where he 'hﬂu.r_:,h‘t. two more
beers and a nalf pint of whiakey, some of which he drank, and he mé% Frank
at the corner of Forsyta & Nelson Sts, and Frank asked nim to wait untild
hﬂ returned, : | =

Conley went over to the Factory and mentioned various people whom he o
gaw from his place of esplonage going up the stairs to lr, Frankls office.
Then prank whistled to him “nd he came up at&irs_aﬁd Frank was tram‘bling
and he and Frank went into the private offioce when Frank axcin:i.med that
ies e Clark and Corinthia Hall wdre ooming and concealed Conley in the
wardrobs, Conley sald that he stayed in the wardrobe a pratiy guud' while,
for the whiskey and beexr had gotten him o Bwaa.ti*zg. mhen prank asked him
if ne could write snd prank made him write at his dictation three times and
Frank +told him he was gning Lo teke the note and sentl it fn & lebter to his
ﬁedpla and recommend Conley to them, grank said “Wh:,r-ahﬁ'al& I hang‘?"f

Frank took = cigarstte from a box and gewa the box to Cr:mlsy, and
when Conley zot across thne street, he found it had Two papex ﬂﬂllﬂr:f“'«"m
gilver qima:tara in it, and Conley sald "good luck has done struck ma'-',

A’; tne Eeer Saloon ha“b-:augl"t one-half pint of whiskey and then got a bucket
wfxkewr and bousht 10::1;;-,, wortn af beexr, I0 cts, worth of gtove-womod, and

a nicklefs worgh of pan aa.asag., and gave nis old woman $3,50, He did not

leave home until about 1= u'cluck Sunday, On Tuesday morning Frank cqme up
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gtairs and told him to be a g:;;::d'bny. On Wedneaday Conley washed his shirt
st the Factory and hung it on the steam pipe to dry, ocoasaBoning a lit*.:la-
rust to get on it, The Detectives tock the shirt and fiﬁainé no blood on
it returned it, - : :

On the 20th of Msy, 1913, Conley made another affidavit, in which
he said that prank told him that he had picsked up a2 girl and let her fall
and Conley hallowed to nim that the girl was dead, and %old him to go to t
the cotton ba..g and get apieua of clnt-h, and he got a ;umm:ﬂ;x pig wide
piece of cloth and took her on bis Iigﬂ.u shoulder, f.;rhan s‘neJ got 00 J:Flaaw:r
for him and she slipped off when he gat to the Dressing Room, He called
Fa:a.nk-_ to help and prank got a key to the elevaior and the two carried
the body dovn stairs and Frark told him to take the body back to the saw
dust pile and Boﬁla? says, he picked the girl up and put T.ﬂer on his ah&uld—
er, while Frank went back up the ladder, p

It will Dbe ubse:;:-ved +nat the testimony and the appearanca of the girl
indicated that she was dragged tarough the cinders and de’aria on the floor
of tne basement, yet conle;r says he took her on his snoulder,

The affidavit further states that Conley took the oloth from around
har and ook ner hat and slipper, waich he had picked up upstairs, right
where her body was lying and ¥rsgun brought them down and unbied the cloih
and Dbrought them baock a.nd“thrmd tnem on the irash piie in front of the
furnaoce, This was thé +ime that Conley says 31'_#.111: made the axnlama.t ion
ot Bime Clacks ana Corntnim Halle e o

An important feature in this affidavit is as follows:

Conley states in i% that Mr, Frank said: "here is $200,00 and Frank
handed the money to him“. x :

All of the affidavit dowm to this point is in type-writing, tae
original was exaibited to me, At the end of the affidavit in hand writing
ig written the following: "While I was looking at the money in my handsy
i, Frank said, let me hare that and I will make it all right with you '
Monday, if i‘.vli'ra and nothing happens", and he 40 d t:ﬂé m:_ma:-,r back and I
agiked h:.m if tha.t was the way he done, and s said he would give it baok

Monday"”,

+ will be noticed tnat the first question which would arise would

be, what became of the £200, This could not be accounted for,



Thersfore, when that quexry presumably was propounded to Conley, the only
axplanﬂtinn was that Frank demanded it baock, '

' The Deteciives had Conley for two or three hours on May 18th trying
to obtain a confession, and he denied he had ssen ine girl on the day of
tne muz*é‘uar; The Datsﬁtivea guestioned nim closely Tor three nours oh May
20T, WiGu 108 Iropeated Lu.b BLUiy, On ey E'Fth:’f; talked to him'ahout.
five or six hours in Chief Langford's office,. g | =

Detective Scott, who was introduced by the State, testiried regards:.

ing counleyls stateuweut and arridavits as Tollows:

"We tried to impress nim with ;;9: EE‘;;:R would not have written
those notes on Friday, that that was not a reasonavle atary. That it
showed premeditation and that would not do, We pointed out %o nim hh;sr tne
Iirset sta.temﬁt-would not £it, We told him we wanted anotaer statement,
He declined to make anotner stasewent, He said ue nad told tae Ltrutal,

W Qp day 28th, Chier Langford and I grilied him for Tive or six
hours again, endazﬁ'oriﬂg to make clear seve;al points which were far
fetoched in nis ut&.taman‘.;, We pointed out to him that his statement would
not do and would not fit, =and he then mndﬂﬂiaata‘;amant of sy 28th, after
he hs.geeﬁld that ais p:_ce*ﬁfious stat ement showed delibveration and could not
be acoepted, He told us nothing about Frank mﬂciﬁg an engagement to ;
gtamp and for him to lock the doox, and tolc_l notning about lonteen Stover,
He did mot tell us sbout sseing TI&f;F Phagan, He said he did not see her,
He did not sey he saw Quinn, Conley was a rather dia:t;r negro when I first
saw him, He locked pretty good wnen he testified herxe,

non Mey 29th, we talked witn Conley almost all day, We pointed out
things in his 3tor;:r_1':.ha.t were lmprobable :md' +0ld him he must do better
than that, $ning in his story that looked to ve out of place, we told
him would not do, We tried to get him to tell mbout the little mesh bag,
We tried pretty strong, IHe always denied ever having seen i, He denied
knowing anything about the mattér down in the basement in t:ﬂé glevator :
ghaft, He nevexr said ne went down there himself between the time he came
o the Taotoxry and went to lloniags, He never said anything about Mr,
Frenk naying hit her, or having hit ner too hard, oOr about ‘“ip—toaa from
the Metal ﬂnm:ﬂepartment. He said there was no tnuusht of ﬂw-*lna‘ the

Dody,

Sy i et e R — —
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"On May 18th we undertook in Chief Langfordls Office to convince him
he oould write, and we understood he said he could not write and we knew he
could, We convinced him that we knew he could write and then he wrotel

In his evidence before the Jury in the re-dirsct examination, Conley
thought it necessary to ascount fof the mesh bag: end for the first_tima,
said that"Mary Phagan's mesh bag was lying on Mr, Frank's desk and Mr, Frank
put it in the pafe", This is txe first mention of the meah bag, ;

The firet suggestion thet was made of Frank being a pervert was in
Conley'!s testimony, On the stand, wher he declared Frank said "he was not
built like otner men®, -

There ia no proof in the record of Frank being & pervert, The sit-
uation in whioh Conley places him and upon Conleyls testimony must that charge
reat, does not prove the charge of perversion 1fi Conley's testimony be itrue,

On argument before me, I asked wha?U;QZ; Conley would maka have to malke
such 2 suggestion and the only reason given was that some one may have made ko
him the suggestion because Jews were circumcised,

Conley in his evidsnce shows himself amendable to suggestion, He says,;
"if you tell a story, you know you have got to change i, A lie wonlt work
and you know you have got to tell the whole truth", ;

Conley in explaining why his affidavits varied said: "The reason why I
told that story was I do not want them to know thit these other people passed
ty me for they might accuse me; I do not want padple o think that I was
the one that done the murder",

AUTHOR OF THE NOTES,

Conley edmits he wrote the notes found by the body of lary FPgagan,
Did Frank dictate them? Conley swears he did, The State says that the xBi
use of the word "did" instead of"done" indicates 2 white men's dictation,
Conley admite the spelling wes his, The words are repeated and ars simple, w
which characterizes Conley!s letters, In Conley's testimony, you will find
frequently that he fces the word "did" and according to calculation submitted
to me, he used the warﬁ #33d® over fifty times during the trial,

While Conley was in jail charged with being an accessory, there was also

incarcerated in the jail, a woman named Annie laude Carter, whom Conles he
h nley had
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met at +he Court House, She did work in the jail and formed Em ac-
guaintance of Conley, who wrote +o her many nibdngithly lettezs, These
letters are the most obscene and lecherous I have e%er read, In these
letters, the wnrd'aiduia frequently employed, It will be observed that
in Conley!s testimony, he uses freguently the word '"negro", and in the
Annie Maude Carter notes, he says; "I have a negro watching you",

The Annie Maude Carter notes, which were powerful svidence in
behalf of ihe defendant, and which tended strongly to show thaet Conley

was the real author of the murder notes, were not before the Jury,

The work "like" is used in the lfary Phagan notes, and one w;11
find it freuuewily employed in Conley's tastimuﬁw. The word "p] ayrtt
in the Hgry Phagan notes, with an obscene significancej is uimilérly
employed in the Annie liaude Carter notes, The Bame isntﬁﬁa as to the w
words "lay" and “La&a“,

In Conley?'s testimony, he mmes the words "meke water® just as they
are used in the lary Phagan notes, ;

In Conley's teatimﬂny he gays the word "hisself" cunstaﬁtly.

It is jrged by the lewyers fox the dafenaalthat Conley's charagter-
istic was to use double adjectives,

In the H%ry Phagan notes, he said "long +all negro, vlack", %long
glim, tall megro®,

In his testimony Conley used expressions of this sort, "He was a
$all, slim build heavy many "p zood long wide piewe of gord in his handas",

Conley says that he wrote four nutas; although only two were found,
These notes have in them 128 words, and Conley swears he wrote them in 2
miénutes, Detsctive Scott swears he dictated eight words to Conley and it

took him azbout six minutes to write them, 8

The statement is made by Frank and thatl atatamanﬁ is ouasistent-with
the evidence in the record,that the information that Conley éaui&1write
asme from Frank when he was informed that Conley claimed he could no%
write, Frark says ne did not disclose this vefore, besause he was not
aware Uonley had besen at the Factoty on +he 26th day of April, and there=
fore the materielity of whether Conley could write any mors than any

other negro employee, had not peen sugzgested to him, Frank says that

he gave the information that

d

Conley nad signed raceipts wita certaln Jewele
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ers, with whom Conley had dealings

WHELE WERE THE HOTES WRITTEN,
A+ the +ime of the pwial, it was not observed that the Dsath ot
written on brown paper was an order blank, with the date line "Atlanta,

190, Subsequenply the paper was put under a magnifying glad

e oy

Ga, __ _ .
and in blue pencil, it was found that one Becker's name was written bhu
Hs had been employed at the Factory on the foursh floor. Investigatii
wes made and Becker testified that he worked for the Pemcil Factury-fri
1908 until 1912, and the order blank was -1018, During that entire

he signed orders for goods and suﬁpliea. The brown paperT ﬂﬁ wnich th
"Death Hote was written besars his signature, and at the time he left A
ta in 1912, the enbire supply of blanks containing the figures 1%0_, h
been axhau#ted, and the blanks containing the figures njgl ", had alre
been put in use, Becker mekes affidavit that before leaving Atlante
he personally packed up all of the dupliéate orders which had been fil

and performed tieir functions, and sent them down to the basement fo I

burned, Whether the order was carried out, he did not know

evidancs

nee

In reply to dhis; the State introduced on the ex*"aofd nary mof
the testimony of Philip Chambers, who swears that unused order blarks
entitled "Atlanta, Ga,, s 191_ were in the office next to Frank

_H

office and that he had xxwswm besen in the pasement of the Factiory and

found no books or papers left down there for any length of time, but

were always burned up,

This evidence was never passed upon by the Jjury gééide?elnped
the trial, It was strongly corroboratiwe of the theory of the defens
that tne death notes were writtén, not in Frankl!s office, but in ihe
basement, &nd esgecially in view of the evidence of Police Sergeant I
whno visited the scene of the crime on Sunday morning, as fallowsﬁ

nThis scratch pad was also lying on the ground close to the Dbc
The soratch pad was lying near the notes, They were all right close
gather, There was a pile of IT ash near the bﬂilgr where this hat wi
found, and paper and pencilas were down there too",

Police Officer Anderson testified:

Whhers are plenty of pencils and trash in the basement",
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Darley testified: "I have seen all kinds of paper down in the
basement, Tie peper that note is written on is a blank ordexr pad, Th
¥Xind of paper is likely to be found all over the building for this rea
they write an order and sometimes fz2il %c get & carbon under i%t, and &
other times, they change the order and it gets infa the trash, -That k
of pad is used all over the Factory, : -

' | Over the boiler is 2 gas jet,

Another feature which was not knowm at the trial and which was
presented to the Jury, but ceme up by extradrdinary potion, was regard
the hair alleged to have been found by Barrett on the laths, The e
idence on the trial of some of the witneasses was that the hair looked
like that of Mary Phagan, It was not brought out at the trial that Dr,
Herris had examined thé hair under a microscope and by takiﬁg sections

. though
of it and comparing it with Kary Phagan's hair, Xx=k that on the lathe
was notb Mary Phagan's hair, aithﬂugh ne said he could not be certain o

This, haﬁev&r, would have besn the highest and best evidence,

The evidence as to the probability of the blank on which the de
note was written being in the basement,and the evidence zs fo the hair
would heve dAmm=xdedx tended to show that the murder was not committed

floor on which Frank'!s office was located,

THE TIWE QUESTION,
The State contended that lfary Phagan came to the office pf Leo I

Frank to get her paf at some time betwesem 12,05 amd 12,10 and that Fra;

had declared that he was in his office the whole time, f:‘

It is true that &t the Coronerl's Fmxx Inqusst held Qﬁ”Thursday
after the murder (Pzge 364F, he said he might have gone back to the to
put did not remember it, However, in some of his testimony, Frank sa
had remained the whole time in his office, Ilonteen Stover awears that
came into Frankd'effice at 12,05 and remained until 12,10, and did not
Frank or anybody, She is unimpeached, and the only way o reconcile h
evidence would be that she entered Frank's office,as she states for th
first time in her life, and did not go into the inuner room,where Frank
claimed to have besen at work, If Frank wére at work at his desk, he «

not be seen from the oubter room, llonteen Stover said she wors Tennis

Shoes and her steps may not have atiracted him,
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However, the perﬁinenéy éf Monteen Stover!s testimony is that U

Phagan had come to get her pay and Frank had gone with her back +to the
lletal Room and was in process of killing her while lionteen Stover was

his office, and this was at a time when he had deckared he was iu nis

oIrice,

Tue evidence looses its pertinency,if liary Phagan had not arriv
at ‘the time lionteen Stover game, What is tne evidence?
| The evidence uncontrauicteu diselsses that Mary Phagan ate her

ner at 11,30 o'elock, and the evidence of the street car men was that
caught the 11,50 carg which was due at the corner of Forsyth & leriett
at XRy¥E 12,074, éh; distance from this place to the Pencil Factory &
anaut one-fifth of a mile, It rsquired from 4 to 6 minutes to walk +o
Factory, and espacially wouldl ghe time be enlarged, beeause of t'::a cT o
on the streets on pemorial Day, =X

While the street car men swear ﬁha car was on time, and while G
Iipps, & witness for the State, who rode With ﬁa&; Phagan,-swears he le:
apout iE 07 at the corner of Forsyth & Marietta Sts, There.is Bome
to uﬂE effect that the car arrived mmxiime according to custom, but mij
arrived two or three minutes bafore g?hedule time, If s0, the distans
would have placed liary Phagan at the Pencil Factory aib Eﬁmu timE“hEtWE
12,05 and 12,10, Ilocnteen Stiver locked at the clock and says she ente:
12,05 A suggestion is made thst the Time Clocks, which were punched 1
employees, might have been flast, This proposition was met by W, W. R
who accompanied the Defectived to the scene of the murder on Sunday mo:
and who testified (Page 200), "I know that both clocks were u'tlﬁg, al
rnoticed both of them had the exact time", Therefore, lonteen Stover r
have arrived vefore MUMary Phagnn,qnd while ilonteen Séover was in the 3
it hardly seems possible under “he evidence, that liaxry Fhagan was at ti
time being murdered, : \

Lemmie Quinn testifies that he teached Frank'!s office about 12,
and saw Ifr, Frakk, At 12,30, lrs, J, A, White called to see her husba:
at the Factory where he was working on the fourth flcor, and left agai:
véfore one o¥clock,

At 12, EO, according to Denham, Frank came up to the fourth floo:

said that he wanted to get out, The evidence for the defenge tends to
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that the time taken fGTHMD;ing the body, according to Conley's descript
wag so long that it could not have £itted the specific times at which V
tﬁrs saw Frank; 1t will be seen that when Hna, White ceme up at 12,30,
ths doors below were unlocked,

Anotjer feature of the evidence is that the Praske—oi—ina back s
in the basement was the former means of egress for Conley, when he'desi
to escape his creditmra among the employes, On Sunday ﬁﬂrning, April
the staple of this door had been drawn, Detzsctive Staines fﬂundﬂﬂn the
door the marks of what he thoughilﬁngblaﬂdy £i nger-prints, and he cl
off two pileces from the door, which looked 1ika"blﬁody finger—=prints,
evidence does not disclose further investigation 2as to whethef it was
or not, '

The motive of this murder may be either Rebbery, or RoblLery an
Assaul®, or Assault,
| Thera is no sugzestion that the motiye of Trank would be robbe
The mesh bag was in Mary PBagan's hands and wajdescrived 0¥ Conley, ir
re-direct exemination, at ﬁﬁe trigl for the first time, The size of f
mesh bag, I cannct tell, but since = ploody handerchief af llary Phagar
was found by her side, it was urged ovefore me by counsel foxr the def e
that ladiss usuallf carried their handkerchiefs in their mesh bags,

If the motive was assault, either by natural or"perverted me an
the physicians evidence, who made the examination, dosgnot disclose i
accumglishmént, Perversion by none of the suggeafed'ﬁaans could have
sioned the flood of ©lood, The Docuors testifie& that excitement ﬁig
occasioned it under certain corditions, Under the evidencé, which is
ot Forth in detail, there is every probability that the virtue of ia
Phagah was not logt on the 26%h day of April, Her mesh bag was lﬂﬁﬁ:
thére can be no doubt of this, The evidence shows that Génlay wWaS a8
praved and lecherous a negrﬁ ag ever lived in Georgla, Ie iay iﬁ wﬁt

and deseribed the clothes and stockings of tne women who went to the
F

Factory, {chf

His story necessarily bears the construction that prank had ar

ment with llary Phagaﬁ, which no evidence in the case would Justify.

e h%i an engaged Conley to waton for him, it could only have oee:
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for layy Poogarn, since ne made ﬁc improper sug gestion tc any other Iemes
on thas day, én& it was uhdispuﬁed_thai nany did ocome up priﬂf B0 12 B0
oclock, and whom could Frank have been expecting except laxy Phagah unag

Conley'e story, This view cannot be entextained, &8 an injustifzably

reflection on the young girl,

Way the negro wroie %he notes is & matter open to conjecture, I
had been drinking hesvily thet mozning, and it is possible thot he unde
tock to degcribe the other negro in the buildiné so that it would &ven:
suspicicns,

1t may be poseible that his version is correct,

The festimﬂny discloses that he was in the habit of allowing metl
to go into the basement for immoral pu.rpdéeé for & éaﬁsidera‘uicn, and

Mary Phagan passed by him clese tc the hatchway leading into the basem:

??F*jlgnru

and in the gloom and darkness of the entrance, he attacked her, What .

AN

the tr uth we may never know,

JURY'S VERDICT,
The Jury which heasxd the evidence and saw the witnesses found %

- "

defendent, Leo M, Frank, quilty of murder, They are the cnes,under ©
laws, who are =ksxgsdchosen to weigh evidence and to determine its pro
tive value, They may consider the demeanor of th® wilnesses upon the

stand and in the exercise of common sense will arrive with wonderful &

curacy at the truth of the contest,

JUDICIARY,

Under our law, the only authority who can review the merits of
case end question the Justice of & verdict which has any evidence to s
Sort it, s the triel judge. The Supveme Court is limited by the Con-
stittution and the correction of errors of law, The Sﬁpreme Court fou
in the trial no erxzor of law and determined 2s & matter of law, aad cg
rectly in ;;;%r judgement, that there was suffiéient evidence to suste
the verdict, ' '

But under our juﬁiciaﬁ&*syﬁt&m, the triel judge is called upon
exercise his wise discretion, and he cannot permit a verdict %o stand
+hich ne believes to be unjust, A suggestion in the order over-rulin

‘motion for a mew trial, that the judge was not satisfied with the verc

would demand & reversal by the Supreme Court,
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s
Tnn this connection Judge Roan declared orally from the bench thai
he was not certain of the defendant's guilt - that with sll the thought
he had put on this case, he was nct thoroughly convinced whether Frank
was guilty, or innocent - but that he did not zave to be conwvinced - T
the Jjury was convinced snd that thsre was no room to douvbt that - that
he felt it his duty to order that the motion for & new trial Ee OV er-11
This statement was not embodied in the motion over-ruling new iz
Under our statuts, in cases of conviction of murdex on'eireumhﬁa
evidence, it i& within the discretion of the trial judge to sentence ik
defendant to life imprisonment (Code Section EEj._
The convictiion of Frank was on circumstantial evidence, as ike
Sclicitor General admifis in his written argument, 3
Judge Roan, hewe%er, misconstrued his power, &s evidenced by the
following cherge to the juiy in the case of the Etété agaﬂnsﬁ Tranky
nIf you belleve beyond & reaﬁﬁnahle doubt from the evidence in th

cage that this defendanh is gui lty of murder; then, you would be authox

in that event to say, "We, the Jury, find the qefendanu guglty", Shot

you go further, gentlemen, snd sy nathing else in your verdict; the o«

would have %o sentence the defendeant tc the extreme penelty of murder,
to-wit: "To el henged by the neck until he is deadl,
i : .
Surelys.Jdudge Rosn entertained the extreme doubt indicated by ke

statement crd had Pemembered the power granted him by the Géde, e wowl
have sentenced the defendant to life imprisonment, f0;3 )

N

In a letter written to counsel he says, "I shall ask the Brison
Gammissiﬂn'to recommend teo the Governor to caﬁmuﬁe Framk*a sentanoé Lo
1mprismqpmen+ #xwxx Tt ig possible that I showed undue deference 1o ©
Jury in this case, when 1L allowed the verd;ct to stand, They sald by
verdict that they had found the truth, I wes in a state of uncertaint

and so expreseed myself xzaasEz*  After many months of continued dell

ation, I am still uncertain of Frark's guilt, This state of uncertal

ig larxgely due by the cheracter of the Conley testlmony, by which the

verdict was largely reached,
nnperefore, I consider this & C&SS in whioh the chief megisiret

¢f the State should exert eVeIy effort in ascertaining the truth, The
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execution oflzzrperscn, whose guiiﬁ ﬁaﬁ not bveen satisfactorily provsan,
iz too hoxrikle to conﬁemplate, T do not believe that = peréon should :
meet with the extreme penelty of the lew, until the Cau:t, Jury and CGov:
ernor shall have 211 been satisfied of that péﬁﬂon*ﬂ gullt, Hencey &t
the proper time, I shall expresaland enlarge upon theselvicws, dirécfly
o the Priscn Commission and Governor, |

"However, if for any oapdeI am prevented from deoing this, you
are at liberty to use this letier at the hearing", ;

It will thus be observed that if commutation is granted; the ver

dict of the Jury is not attacked; but the penalty is impcéed for murder

which is [k vy the State and which the Judge, except for his
miéconceptiﬂn, wauld have imposed, Without aﬁtaﬂkingrthe Jury sy o éay
of the courts, I would be caxrying ocut the will of the Judge himself in
making the Peﬁalty that which he would heve made it and which he desire
it shell be made, ;

In the case of Hunter, & white man charges with assassinatiing tw
wnite women in the City cof Sayvannah, who was found guilt? end Eénﬁenced
to e hung, application was made +o me for clemency. Hunter was charg
with 2 negro witkh having committed the offense, and after he wes eonvic
the negro was scauitted, It was brought ouﬁqbﬁ éhe,ﬂtaxemént of the ne
that snother negro who was half-witted commitied the-cfima, but noc cred
was givén tc the story, znd he was not indicted,

The Judge and Solicitor General refused to recommend clemency, ¥
upon & review of the evidence, and béuause of the facts and at the iﬁaﬁ

of the leading citizens of Savannak, who ware doubtful of the guilt of

defendant, I commuted the sentenca,'in order that there should be nﬂ'pz
Eibl&litynaf the execution of an innocent man, This acﬁionlhas met wi
the entire approbation of the pecople of Chaéham Countye

In the case of John Wright in Fannin Géunty, two men went to th

mountain home of = citizen, called him out end snot him and were trampl

=1 ks gl

. ) P - : s L) 1 e S e
on his body, wher his wife,with a pebe in her arms, came Ouv O defend

husbend,  One of the men struck the babe with his gun and rilled it,

s k£ . i = i e oy ol T » -
Wright was tried, found guilty and gentenced Lo deati, Evidence was i

duced s to his borrowing 2 gun, His threats, his escape after the B
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occurred at the time he was an ésca@e from the Fannin County J&il under
ind.ic":.men"c for felony, _

I refused to interfere unless the Judge, or Sclicitoxr, would rec
mené interference, which they declined to do, Finally, when on the gal
the Solici tor—general recommended & reprieve, which I'granted, and Tir
on the reaammenﬂﬁtior of the Judge and Solicitor General, as expressed
my Order, I reluctantly commuted the sentence to life imﬁrisunment, T
doubt was suggested as to the identity of the criminal and as to the c2

pility of the testimony of prejudiced witnesses, The crime was &asB he

oug ag this one Em:_i ﬁOIE O,

In the Frank case wme metlters havg developed since the trial wh
did not come kbefore the 3525, to-wit: -Fhe testimony of Eecker, indicadb:
that the death notes were WIluﬁEn in the beasement, and the ts stuwcﬁy [}
pr, Harris, that he was undexr the ,mpre591ﬂr that the hair on the lath
was not that of Mary Phagan, and thus ﬁending to show that the crime W
not committed on the floor or Frankls orrice,

Wnile made the suoject oi'au extxaé:dlng motivi tul & ueW Tilal

17 15 Werl Kuuwn toat 1t 18 &luust & prﬂctlpEA 1u@osﬁlu1L14y to nave

S : : ; ; i ]:ﬁﬂ

= verdict set aside by thie prauedura.
The evidence might not have chenged the verdict, but it might b
caused the jury to rendexr & verdict with the recﬁmmendéiian to meroy.
In any event, the perfﬂrmarce of my duty under the Consttituinr
ig & matter of my cdnscience. The responsibility rests where tne poﬁe
is reposed, Hudge Roan, with that awful sense of responsibility, whi
probably came Over hlmks he t%ougﬁt of that Judge vefore whom he ﬁould
ghortly appeam, calls to me Irom anoither wordld tu request n“am I do T
VERLoO ue Ehﬂul& nave mpn= done, 1 can endure miacoasﬁructian, abuse
condemnation, but I unrét gtand the ccnstant cumpanimnship of'ah aco
conscience, wnlch.w ovld rsmlﬁd me in every thought that I, as deeino
of Goorgia, failed to do what I thought ¥o be right, There is a terr

and
"peyond A REASONABLE DOUET A 2bsolute certainty", for which the law DTO

in allowing life imprisonment instesd of executlon,

trizl
The Judge doubted. Twa Judges of the Su@;ams Eouru

Tnis case has be

marked by doubt,

of Georgia dovbted, Two Judges of the Supreme Court of the Ut-ted St
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doubted, One cof the three Priscn c;mmissiﬂners doucted,

In my Jjudgment, by granting & commutation in this case, I am sus-
teining the Juwry, thsujudga, and the appellate tribunsals, and at the saé
+ime am discharging thak ﬂuﬁy which is plaﬂéd on me b? the Canstituﬁioﬁ
of the State, '

Acting, therefore, in accordance witn what I believe to be my dw
undgr the circumstances of this case, it is | '

OEDERED: Tnet the sentence in tne case of Leo M, Frank is commuw

from the desth penalty to impriscrment for life.

This 2lst day of June, 1913,

" GOVERN
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